SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2020, 12:00 P.M.

AGENDA
(Meeting to be held via teleconference pursuant to
State of California Executive Order N-29-20)

Telephone number for members of the public
to observe, listen, and address the meeting telephonically:
1(888) 251-2909 — Access code is 6724115#

1. Call to Order — Jaymie Bradford, Chair

2. Non-Agenda Public Comments

This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items of interest within the jurisdiction of
the Board that are not on the posted agenda. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no discussion or action shall be taken by the Board on items not posted
on the agenda, :

3. Board Committee Reports and Board Action Items

Consent Agenda:

A, Approval of Minutes of Board Meeting of September 22, 2020

B. Acceptance of June, July, August and September Financial Reports from
Chief Financial Officer

C. Authorization to Support Downtown San Diego Partnership Digital Kiosk
Project

Action Item(s):

D. Budget Committee (Carol Kim)
(1) Authorize Approval of Revised FY 21 Budget
E. Audit Committee (Allan Farwell)

(1) Authorize Acceptance of Audited Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal
Year Ended June 30, 2020

F. Sales & Marketing Committee (Elvin Lai)



SDCCC Board of Directors
October 27, 2020
Page 2

4. Chair’s Report (Chair Jaymie Bradford)

5. President’s Report (Rip Rippetoe)

6. Board Comment [Govt. Code § 54954.2(a)(2)]

Adjournment

This information is available in alternative formats upon request. To request an agenda in an alternative format, or to reguest a sign
language, oral interpreter, an Assistive Listening Devise (“ALD”), or other reasonable accommodation for the meeting, please call Pat Evans
at (619) 525-5131 at |east two working days prior to the meeting to ensure availability. Audio copies of Board of Director meetings are
available upon reguest. Please contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or pat.evans@visitsandiego.com to request a copy.

In compliance with Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt written material that is distributed to the Board prior to the meeting will
be available at the meeting or it may be viewed in advance of the meeting online st visitsandiego.com. Materials distributed to the board
after the posting of this agenda also will be available. Please contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or pat.evans@visitsandiego.com if you
would like to receive a copy of any materia! related to an item on this agenda.

Action items on this agenda may be consolidated for voting purposes into a single vote of the Board, to the extent they are routine or
otherwise do not require further deliberation. A Board member may comment on an action item before it Is voted upon as part of the
consolidated vote; however, if a Board member wishes to discuss an action item, that item will not be included in the consolidated
vote. If a member of the public wishes to comment upon an action item, they should so advise the Board chair at or before the public
comment portion of the meeting, in which case that item will not be incfuded in any consolidated vote.




Agenda Item 3.A

MINUTES*
SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2020
Via Teleconference

py
BOARD MEMBERS Chair Jaymie Bradford and Directors, Elvin Lai, Carol Kim,

PRESENT: Carlos Cota, Allan Farwell and Xema Jacobson

BOARD MEMBER(S) Director Jeff Gattas

ABSENT:
STAFF PRESENT: Rip Rippetoe, Mardeen Mattix and Pat Evans (Recorder)
ALSO PRESENT: Jennifer Lyon, General Counsel
::tu:i:nzg)‘lr?:lt::n::agr: ci;zgerctzre::e:t;zi; are/%lable%ﬁ////request Pleg,s%contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or
R R
: ///% < W

/
Ot d Meeting to order at 12:05p.m. in the Executive
///}/’W //4/ } r Corporation, 111 West Harbor Drive, San

Chair Jaymie B%)ﬁ/@
é)"”m { the San D
/{?% /%2/1@ Cﬁ//// adfor ////// calléd roll to determine which Directors were
nt on the

a7 4l
//j/ { ’fé@ ere{//gBé /}}///
h \ 3 %
1 adford Pres f/ ////
Dlrecf:/r // — Present /)/ ////

Director Kf 1,— Present %

Fa%/ o
Director ﬁ) — Pr es/;//

7

od
Director Cota @P}// 6/9//
&7

Director Gattas — St
Director Jacobson - Present

All Directors were present except Director Gattas. Chair Bradford noted that all votes
taken during this meeting would be recorded via roll-call vote.

2. Non-Agenda Public Comment — None




3.

Board Committee Reports and Board Action Items:

Consent Agenda:

Approval of Minutes of Board Meeting of August 4, 2020

The minutes were revised to reflect that General Counsel Lyon was absent from the
meeting.

Directors Lai and Kim moved and seconded, respectively, to approve the Consent
Agenda with the revision set forth hereinabove.

Chair Bradford — Aye

Drirector Lai — Aye _
Director Kim —Aye "
Director Farwell — Aye /
! <
o
%/

Director Cota — Aye /%/

Director Gattas — Absent ///////////

Director Jacobson - A @
irector Jacobson - Aye ///////;,//

Vote: Unanimous %//

T,
%%é%%%
X
AYES: 6 :

g ¢ %%%4%

Budget (/26/’inm1 ee;/ @arol Klm)/
)

/ My Z/// { ////, %I/////’Ihlr(ff]}ewsed Fiscal Year 2021 Budget
B o

Rlppet@/ recomm /nd ed tabllng “this action due to pending discussions with the

% Clty related %onﬂnﬁmg shelter operations at the Convention Center. The
@¢ ome of the @i ---;aussmns/%lll likely revise the figures in the budget presented for
on//§ ratlon to %y% After discussion, the Board elected to table this item pending

t/// if, furt//l}// formation from the City regarding the status of continuing

//

shelter o{g/fat /
(2) Authorization to Approve Revised FY 21 CIP

Directors Kim and Farwell moved and seconded, respectively, to approve the Revised
FY 21 CIP.

Chair Bradford — Aye
Director Lai — Aye
Director Kim —Aye
Director Farwell — Aye
Director Cota — Aye
Director Gattas — Absent



Director Jacobson - Aye
Vote: Unanimous
AYES: 6 NAYS: 0 ABSTENTIONS: 0

(3) Authorization to Approve ERP Conversion Project

Directors Kim and Lai moved and seconded, respectively, to approve the ERP
Conversion Project.

Chair Bradford — Aye
Director Lai — Aye

Director Kim —Aye .
Director Farwell — Aye ///%

A
Director Cota — Aye / %
Director Gattas — Absent // ’~%///%
%,

Director Jacobson - Aye . o
| .
. © ©
Vote: Unanimous ,///// /////Z/’
& < v
AYES: 6 %%@ﬁ 0 . ABSTENTIONS: 0
. ) ’-«/%/ '/é/’// H
Qs <
”’ Am/{//ﬁd {///e/{% Co//%’ﬁ?ct and Adopt Attendant
R i i ////// Uy
@

@) Au/z%/%}// j C/ e
Director%f; / )
this item d f’e%ii@ a c{/n f interést with Centerplate. Director Lai further did not

%;9 reques% 'recusal ffom participating in the discussion and voting on
s tem dUlg 0 SOIISLQ, TN
<

at
esoliii /}%
% 78
2 |
g ndg.. ‘ . . : .
sipate in dg/}rv tions oithis togle during the Budget Committee meeting.

%,
_
Directors Kim alf/éjff@ota n@f/ffed and sec%//{/%ed, respectively, to approve Amending the
U, ////g/’// /{/‘f’{{// . .
Ce _;t&‘}? late Conira t;/a d Ad .t ng Attendant Resolution #2020-06.
Y . //////

@

bAein AN
G i U,

U
Chair B{;?/;l; ford — Aye%///
Director :;//1?"— Recused//ﬁ{f‘om vote

Director Kin%gf/",/ye )///
Director Farwélil//;fﬁj/fy 'y
Director Cota — A”%é’y/
Director Gattas — Absent

Director Jacobson - Aye

Vote: Unanimous

AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTENTIONS: 0



(5) Authorization to Retain Strategic Planning Consultant for Board Retreat

Directors Kim and Cota moved and seconded, respectively, to approve Retaining a
Strategic Planning Consultant for Board Retreat

Chair Bradford — Nay
Director Lai — Aye
Director Kim —Aye
Director Farwell — Aye
Director Cota — Aye
Director Gattas — Absent
Director Jacobson - Aye

/
.
Vote: Unanimous / ////
/ /
AYES: 5 NAYS: % ABSTENTI/@}S 0

A

, Adoptin ///é/j\l ew Retirement

(6) Authorization to Adopt Reso{/’( } %/

Plan Documents%//%///

Directors Cota and Lai mo /g
Resolution #2020-03, Adoptmg

Y
Chair Bradfo
/

econded TeS rectively, to approve Adopting
//Z? tPlan}; cuments.

Qe Pl e
/% Ry, *
iy

/%

Director Lay, Aye //
Director Klm/;//e/ / /
Dlrector Farwell < A / .
i,
/}%g//{ %%%////%f/ Abseny ////////// //Z////
////ZectorJ cob////// Aye % ///////
/
) A O N
Vote 7 // animous @% //
2 L avs: .
AYES: 6 4 NAYS: 0 ABSTENTIONS:
YE / // / T 0

o
C. Sales &/ﬁ; Keti g Committee (Elvin Lai)} — Director Lai reported:

lfgl{stry is still deahng with the 1mpact of COVID; however, Staff is
working on retaining, moving and servicing current clients.

e The SDCCC Convention Services function is being transferred to San
Diego Tourism Authority (“SDTA”) and will be operating as a part of that
entity going forward, This move will streamline operations and save on
costs.

o Staffis keeping Q-1 and Q-2 clients updated regarding reopening progress
and process. Staff is hopeful that these clients will delay final decisions
regarding moving forward or cancelling their events until further
information is available. Clarity is needed from the State and County
regarding reopening guidelines as soon as possible in order to prevent
further erosion of business in the first two quarters.

4



e SDTA is going to retain consultant, Christine Shimosaki, to work on a
strategic plan for the sale of citywide events.

Chair’s Report (Chair Jaymie Bradford):

o Chair Braford appointed an Ad Hoc Nominating Committee to determine
the 2021 slate of officers. The Committee will consist of Chair Bradford
and Directors Jacobson and (attas.

Chair Bradford thanked the staff for the contributions to the success of the
Shelter-to-Home operations.
o Chair Bradford noted the Convention Center received the San Diego

Military Advisory Council annual achievement award for Operation

Shelter-to-Home.
o Chair Bradford thanked Director Lai fo //?//

.

O

Ving two terms as the President
v

of the San Diego Lodging Associat /c{'l

o The next scheduled Board meeti / /-/’/ b 27, 2020.
/

President’s Report (Rip Rippet )//’ Mr R_lppet/’ g reported on the following

: //

items: //// //f%
o The SDCCC business de opment function has bg reallocated between
Mr. Rippetoe, Ms. Mattlx ”’ly//; / M1kschl/a~.nd Ms. T a%é N

o Staff has met/ ith “Clear,” 1oL é) 241? most airport / /d//,some stadiums
(re: TSA che%a /1/,1/1ts) to dlsc “ )//potentlal biometric advances could
work with sta f - / % mers andsee if it possible to monetize this
technology. / //////%/ //,/%

o Virtual meetlngs @con‘u %/e the p

// ’%/{/ﬁ /}/ r///t/% /9 %////////%‘ on ways to offer

10/webeasting/virtyal, classroom™dpilit we can address that need in
%/;e market%% ///// //l
o A%éj/i}nmar)y 1 SDCCCsy % statement policy was forwarded to the Board
this %ﬁ@m // // CCC’ _fyle for reinstatement of non-represented
f/z////% / //
/////////% STSONTl ,,l th I{ ﬁlﬁed senior person is the first in line for
G /‘(ﬁst ///// /%//
//%/%/ o %%?{;u erence a endance will be down as consumer confidence
_
/%///////// conti /W%/to bullﬁﬂ%/}; hat will cause a reduction in ancillary services fees and
//// will ult tely 1mpa,,ct our budget negatively.
/%///9/ Mr. Ripp %e thanked all of the Center’s partners for their contributions to
/// e Shelte 0 -Home operations.

Board Cotik / ; ovt. Code § 54954.2(a)(2)] - None
W///



There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:19 p.m.
CERTIFICATION

I, Allan Farwell, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the San Diego Convention Center
Corporation, Inc., do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes of
the business transacted by the Board of Directors of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation,
Inc., at a duly noticed meeting held on September 22, 2020 and that said minutes were approved
by the Board of Directors on October 27, 2020.

/////////

%

///
/%/%////
O

\\\\

.
4////////% %
/ .
////////// D N
%/ ////
//
//// /%/%
.
\ Y .

“

&
\



Agenda Item 3.C

Clifford “Rip” Rippetoe, CVE

SAN DIEGO President & CEQ

convention center
CORPORATION

R

October 27, 2020

Honorable Chris Cate

Chair

Economic Development & Intergovernmental Relations Committee
202 C Street, 10™ Floor

San Diego, CA 92101

RE: Support for the Downtown San Diego Partnership Digital Kiosk Project
Dear Chair Cate,

I am writing to you in my capacity as the President and CEO of the San Diego Convention Center
(SDCC) in support of the Downtown San Diego Partnership (Downtown Partnership) and their
commitment to transforming and enhancing the greater downtown community.

The placement of digital kiosks on downtown streets will improve the visitor experience for
convention attendees and the broader downtown community. Visitors to our Convention Center
love our proximity to pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods, but they often arrive with limited
knowledge about everything there is to see, eat, and explore. The kiosks will encourage greater
exploration of the downtown area and help our audiences to easily navigate from one location to
another, This project supports our goal of offering an excellent convention experience that
encourages people to return to San Diego over and over again, thereby bolstering our economic
impact to the region.

The Downtown Partnership has been a great partner to the SDCC. Their track record of providing
enhanced services, and their commitment to the San Diego community exemplifies this
partnership. For the reasons outlined herein, we support the Downtown Parinership’s efforts to

make downtown a better place.

Cted By iz

Clifford “Rip” Rippetoe
President & CEO
San Diego Convention Center

1 619.525.5101 f 619.525.5103 e RIP.RIPPETOE®VISITSANDIEGO.CCOM | 111 W. HARBOR DRIVE, SAN DIEGO, CA 92101 | VISITSANDIEGO.COM



Agenda Item 3.D.1

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Carol Kim, Budget Committee Chair
DATE: For the Agenda of October 27, 2020
RE: Final (third revision) of Fiscal Year 2021 Proposed Budget (since BOD

approval 3-24-2020, 4-20-2020 and 6-23-2020)

BACKGROUND

The San Diego Convention Center Corporation’s budget is adopted by San Diego Convention Center
Board of Directors and submitted for approval to the City Council of San Diego annually. Our
FY2021 budget was approved March 26, 2020, then revised April 20, 2020 and again June 23, 2020,
due to the COVID-19 pandemic based on continued loss of events. State mandated shelter in place
executive orders centinue to limit social gathering and have designated venues for
consideration in the last phase of their current re-opening plan.

The City of San Diego has been using the convention center as a temporary homeless shelter from
April 2020 with anticipated full demobilization to occur by December 15, 2020. City of San Diego
adopted a revised budget on Tuesday, June 9, 2020, which called for $2.3M monthly financial
assistance related to shelter efforts supported through CARES Act funding to continue through
October 31, 2020. On October 13, 2020, the City approved extending shelter efforts through the end
of the calendar year.

The final FY2021 proposed budget assumes shelter demobilization efforts will conclude by
December 31, 2020 with events resuming in early summer, June 2021.

DISCUSSION

The FY2021 Budget approved on June 23, 2020, produced Net Operating Loss of ($1,382,170) based
on no event activity through November. Since then, many events have cancelled or deferred business
to future years. Based on recent economic reports and overall tourism sentiment, events are
anticipated to resume by June 2021 with significant reduction in attendance through Q3 2021 while
consumer confidence builds. The Corporation anticipates attendance to resume to 70% levels
beginning FY2022 with business models estimating pre-COVID full event recovery may not occur
until Q1 2024.



Board of Directors
Agenda Item 3.D.1

October 27, 2020
Page 2

SDCCC is working closely with state and local governments to establish approved guidelines for a
safe re-opening anticipated in the summer of 2021. The majority of event business comes from out
of town guests and exhibitors that takes years to coordinate towards building a successful event.
An organizer typically needs a minimum of 4-6 months lead-time to ensure attendees can register
and book travel plans, ship exhibitor booth materials and confirm registration requirements.
SDCCC risks losing more events into the second quarter of 2021 if approved state reopening
guidelines are delayed beyond November 2020.

Assuming Shelter-to-Home operations continue through December 2020 and events resume by June
2021, the Corporation faces a Net Operating Loss of ($9,189,970). To augment the lost revenue, the
Corporation implemented the following cost mitigation strategies:

Personnel cost reductions:
- Layoffs and reduction of (74) total FT positions between March - October
**65% (pre-COVID 215 FT & 220 PT, post-COVID 110 FTE)
- (74) F'1 permanent corporate positions laid off/eliminated/unfilled
- (13) Future ¥'T positions in facilities will occur at the end of shelter operations
- (14) FT positions reclassified to part-time on call
Extended furlough through end of June 30 (originally intended through December)
**furlough assigned between 10% - 50% of regular hours)
Significant majority of part-time positions loss of hours (approx. 170 staff affected)
Elimination of Sales Incentive program for FY20 and FY21
Elimination of non-represented employee merits for FY21
Elimination of CEO FY 20 retention bonus and contracted salary increase amount for FY21
Planned reduction in employer subsidized healthcare benefits for dependents beginning March 1

1

Non-personnel cost reductions:

- Suspension of preventative maintenance, general expense, travel and non-critical spending until
first half of calendar year 2021.

- Reduction in utility costs due to less event activity

- Reduction in Capital Improvement and Operating Capital purchases

Corporation anticipates an unrestricted reserve shortfall of ($4,142,780) by year-end inclusive of
acerued Debt Service Obligations of ($1,719,450) to fund the IBank Infrastructure loan payment in
August 2021. Corporation anticipates depleting unrestricted equity reserves by end of March.

10 YR- CIP and OPERATING CAPITAL BUDGET

No changes are recommended as the FY2021 Capital Improvement Plan was reduced and
approved at the September 22, 2020 Board meeting to include Capital Infrastructure Projects



Board of Directors
Agenda Item 3.D.1
October 27, 2020
Page 3

(“CIP”) of $325,000 and Operating Capital (“O&M”) $757,788. SDCCC’s CIP priority focus is
on roof design for original “West” building roof replacement as well as to replace corroded sewer
drain lines. Discussions with the Port and City are underway regarding solar feasibility, removal
of the tennis courts, and design details with the anticipation of soliciting for services in Q1 2021.
Roof replacement and design costs are estimated to be $8 million and will be financed through a
collaborative effort of Corporation and City staff through IBank.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve authorization of the FY2021 Third (and Final) Revised Operating Budget and to request
minimum financial support from the City of San Diego of nearly $5 million for FY2021
operational needs.

_ /e
Carol Kim
Budget Committee Chair




SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION

FY2021 BOARD PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET - (Revised Based on June 2021 Re-Opening)

DRAFT 10.19.2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Building Rent
Co-Promoted Events
Food & Beverage
Event Services
Utilities
Telecommunications
Audio & Visual
Business Development
Interest/Investment Income
Other Revenues
City of San Diego

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING INFLOWS
City of San Diego - Marketing
City of San Diego - Shelter Operations
Grants
TOTAL OPERATING INFLOWS

TOTAL REVENUES AND INFLOWS

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries & Wages - Full Time
Salaries & Wages - Part Time
Fringe Benefits
TOTAL PERSONNEL EXPENSES

General Expenses
Repair & Maintenance
Utilities
Contracted Services
Travel & Transportation
Insurance
Telecommunications
Sales & Marketing
Supplies
TOTAL SUPPLIES & SERVICES

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES / EXPENSES

Shelter thru Dec2Q
DEC OPEN Events resume June
FY2021 FY2021
FY2020 BOARD BOARD

ACTUALS | APPROVED - PROPOSED

PRE-AUDIT 6/23/2020 - 10/19/2020
$6,816,665 $5,416,390 $588,310
0 .0 0
9,735,975 4,719,030 763,510
3,174,272 2,535,970 469,150
3,836,062 3,259,980 347,190
3,702,251 " 2,582,850 578,090
809,296| © - 584,660 57,550
249,979 | 383,300 181,450
228,199 - 265,000 19,230
160,681 88,300 34,410
0 0 0
$28,713,381]  $19,835,480} $3,038,890
$2,133,025 $0 - $0
508,212 9,337,500 113,798,200
0 0 . R |
$2,641,237 $9,337,500} $13,798,200}
| [ |
$31,354,618]  $29,172,980] $16,837,090}
$13,773,200|  $12,065,650 $9,022,880
3,920,080  1,987.030 599,370
4,772,451 : 4,370,080] 5,760,110
$22 466,631 - $18,422,760] $15,382,360}
$2,631,890 $1,443,850§ $1,654,600
2,833,535 - 3,-260,820| 2,411,110
3,808,531 - 3,907,670 ' 2,995,490
661,557 . 1,087,620 1,001,270
107,860 - - 90,700 12,940
495,615 583,410 621,890
55,696 51,820 51,420
2,204 205| _1,155,520\ 1,515,230
562,819 550,980 380,750
$13,381,708|  $12,132,390} $10,644,700
$35,848,338 $30,555,-150| $26,027,060
-$4,493,720]  -$1,382,1 7o| -$9,189,970




EXTRAORDINARY GAIN ON DEBT FORGIVENESS $0 $1,387,0000 $4,387,000
DEBT SERVICE EXPENSES : S
Interest Expense $891,362 $1,000,220 $864,220
Loan Admin Fee 74,487 72,200 72,220
Principal: Warehouse Lease 2,197 2,200 2,200
Principal: 1Bank Loan 731,973 783,200 - - 783,200
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENSES $1,700,019 $1,857,820] $1,721,840
NET OPERATING RESERVE IMPACT -$6,193,739 -$1,852,290] -$6,524,810
OPERATING RESERVE ACTIVITY FY2021 ' jFYZOZ'I
FY2020 BOARD BOARD
ACTUALS | APPROVED | PROPOSED
PRE-AUDIT 6/23/2020 | 10/19/2020
Beginning Operating Reserve $13,674,080 $3,575,847 $3,464,818
- Net Operating Loss -4,493,720 -1,382,170] -9,189,970
+ PPP Loan Forgiveness 0 1,387,000 4,387,000
- Debt Service Obligation -1,700,019 -1,857,820 -1,721,840
+ Debt Issued for Capital Projecis 0| - 1,250,000 0
- Capital Qutlay: S
Capiial Infrastructure Project Expenses -2,396,835 -1,500,000 -325,000
Operating Capital Expenses -1,618,688 -835,700 -757,788
Ending Reserve Balance $3,464,818 $537,157 -$4,142,780
Reserve Minimum Balance (8%) $3,003,000 $3,500,000 $3,003,000
Over / (Under) Reserve Minimum Balance $461,818 -$2,962,843 -$7,145,780




Sutpuny [IEAZ Y)im JuBLIoRida) paUUR|d=b

Jamag Buiseyaing fsioeloid Jawo yaum Adauds pue Suide; UKD “NAUSE/PUBLIA] AUQNd=E
51503 5ASEAIIUI IO UOIELBUSE BnuBAsd sipedw/ej| [Njasn paadxa/SWlded wanbali=Z
soepuep fAlales/uyeay ‘Aousiawg=1

CPEE'BIZLEL CrER'RE TR

. mﬁu—E&ij»w__mmzmt:_‘_wu_nm”

095'151't - - - - 086'T6TT - - - - - £ U8 92’ ' - UOIRRZILSPOR SioTeAaTd Jabuassed 14
D09 UL - - - 009'00€"T - - - - - - Buiping 1883 - 5 ‘¥ 'S UCRIPLODSY :51018A8)3 BRI 4
00&'9E") - - - - - 00811 GOD'SZT - - (zwzoedal J2ueld pue swap ‘uBissq) BulioIIPUCOa SIBJUE|d (YBUSH ZEOW/EIRIIBL €
200'005° . . N N _ _ 000°005°T - - - ubisag g Bupuig Aepy sfzubig €
vaLvEL - - - - - vBL'PET - - - - 0je siayes.q Was) - sppued ggy) soxoq Joojj UollARG SIES  ©
009'L5 . _ _ . . 009'T6 . . - . {2) syue) fen punoibizpun soejday g
0B0'080°L - - - - - 000°060°T - - - - GoRIa] SULRIZEW 1594 T8 12/0u03 eaedey £
ooo'es . N R _ _ _ 00008 - - . (ease Bupremaig) Bues soejday g
0h0'96L - - - - - - OrD'96L - - - wisisis Jajsue g Joteseuab Austawa gos) soedoy £
oS - - - - - - 00005 - - - JOPLIGT BT 0] BUE BINIGS BSHOD BADNY €
£L8'452 - - - - - - GLELST - - - uaiory 1583 - eoejdey :s.e108 [EAUBGS] €
005'69€" L - - - - - - OO5'69E'T - - o4 B o0EioY UmMEAB|S paulpL] 4
Sy'geE’l - - - - - Shr'BEEt - - - - eJ8iouod seKiay 8ER AL UG/ €
000°0SE - - - - - - - - 00O'DSE - seIeWED + [Bupe) oY 5] VONIPUS0aY SIMBA2I] £
ong'l2t - - - - - - [ ra - - - Iteg - oprifidn seebycymg EouRe €
000002 - - - - - 000 00T - - - - uolsuedxs Ul pacwiap aq [ 12430 (1B10] 7 YOS 0OD'00LE] - 04N [SPUE)S LOjSSaduos 13
00'000'2 - - - - - 000'0002 - - - - apesddn Anuo jo sjujod 500y €
05T'ese - - - - - - - - 057798 - popn|oUL Spow doo] § 5,04A) WHISAS QAR W stwnd gH 0% Xis Yim oM eoejdey :sdwind JH 058 8
000'S08't - 000528 000058 a00'sZ8 000°508 000'S8L 000°59L - - - (1234 sod g) Bulpiing 1523 - 19481 vapishy speibdy : el g
ooz - - [y - - - - - - - {NOISNYAXT 0 LHvd 38 AV BUIpng 1523 - £ speiBin/osiday Lesliyoums ANZL £
000'002'L - - - - - - o000z’ - - (uswsoeiday Juawidinba) ;apowed (USUSIY 1SeM, F4
266'008°L - - - - - 00005 766055 - - aneniseyul pRowaY Juawdink3 usuRIM ISIM. 2
000'052 - - - - - - - o00'0sT - - 2I00|} USYOYY 1SET 20EJINSY z
000'052 - - - - - - - - 000’052 swony bunse - (ured} uolieziuapol Jalsely T
000'08L - - - - - - - - 0o0gss Qb foudnedieDleisuy) swooy Bugeapy - (jadien) vogeziuapoyy eisen z
000'005'2 - - - - - 000°052'T 000°052°T - - {90 susealq "1608.) S8X0G 400H H-Y SEH IAUX3 2
05+'#89 - - - - - - - CSF'vEY 000'00z Bunubn Agoed - 2z voefday seved joved 2
000005 - - - - - - 000"0SE 0OD'0SE - - SOLBUTIUNEWAUS ORI Jof veld O] TUENSUeD PBBU / SLOTRIS() J0) SUOMISN |GUeD 2
oSz vz - - - - - - - 0STOFT - - 012 S219901 1240) 07 'UBYDIN SiIeS - SI9E Lg edeidey :sbuedD wog oA YW 2
000's2 - - - - - - - - - Top0sE ™ aSnoy-uy Alsow patuopsd 8g o oM - (158 ) sedxd LIRIp Jomas LSLIY SoRIGOY |
rir8'ste'sE ) - K - ] L . -, s1aford Fumolipuodey Juipling|
0050501 - - - 0SZ'0SE 000°05€E 0SZ'05€ - - - - (Eupng 1sap U suool burieeyy) sisiPueH A 104 H{G4A) 9AIQ Aduanba.d BB €
054562 - - - - - 0545627 - - - - wied [gajuad - o oRdey sislicd
0oL'tes - - - - - - D02'€ET - - 02 wookeg - ape,bdn weisis Aenjsa Iy £
Op5'0L6 - - - - - - O¥8'0L6 - - (€% Uea 500e$) 5,044 2528|2044 20|cRY 15-5 B F
000'0FL’'L - - - - - - O00'0FTE - - uepd Eijuac - pnga. aladwes 1S 2 g 5 H
000°'000°9 - 000"005°E - - - 00000¥'T - - - - S5 Lalp pUe 2 @ | Juausoe|da. X z
000+€2'L - - - 000°£9T 000003 00055 000'TTE - - wawsdedes dwnd Weld U8y g
000'SEE'E - - - - - Q00'SEE'T - - - - sepeilidn [paud jugjd ied z
000'Z62'1 - - - - - 000'762'T - - - - JuBILBOR[US! JBIOE Weld [e1ual) 4
000'+965'28 - - O0D'ETS ¥ - D00°DIE'T 000'ZRE'ET  0OD'6DT'ZL - - Ginjaluaweoe|da) SNHY Jeld B4URD
[oevs0s"28 . . R f i R " T - {JuBMSSass YD pase ) JUeLUade oy JUetd.
D089 L - - - - - - - 0089EFT - - {Aousbunuo %0g) joay b 2z
0L 05 - - - - - - - 00£'095'% - - {51 [221IRIR8N 7 Jomar] eddn) jooy B €
005'629'2 - - - - - - - 005°629°T - - 100 [eie - Fiuy L
[[oc0'rzs'a i ] ] - : N - - ! .
005"0EF - - - - - - - - 005'0EY - (iamaT) Jood Buiplng 15am I
0¥ P26 - - - - - - - - 0F'rL6 - {fousbupua 708) Jood BuipIing 1sem 1
01£'920'2 - - - - - - - - OTEQZO'T - (o1 pateazys - doud Jgj0g) jo0y BLUPENG 1SOM 3
P82'8LLZ - - - - - - - - ¥8L9IT'e - (1eddpy) ooy Buippng I1sam |
[08065ES f - - - - T up paseal. (028 (o] 008
Bupupid pun Apqisoag 1ojos T
00o'0se’ ) - - - - - - - - 000°0ST (sisAjeuE Jos ‘sajpms ‘Bulliuuag) sjoc) yiog jo %L1 - JHepnsueg ulisag/Bunasuitiug jooy 1
D000S7 L . - . . . o - S T - - T B U3 pueBuluue|d Jooy
s[EI0L OEAL-TZAI 0E0Z Ad 6Z0Z A Z0Z Ad IT0Z M 9Z0T Ad SZOZ K4 bTOZ Ad €207 AJ Z70Z Ad TEOZ Ad NOILJINDS30 1360 [ AL oK
irins_| oy sor | | | | | | _ | |

0202226 Paroiddy pieog « pesiaay {s198l014 aunjonaseu] jeuded) di3 A0



Sulpuny |ILAB YIM JUIW2e[da) pAUUE|d=¢

Jamod Busseuind/s1rafoad Jsuia i ABISuAs pue Bupe) Jual)) Wausg/puewsg Ngnd=¢
£1507 SBERBJIUL JO LOIIAUT BNUIADS SI0RdWI/SH [N)Isn paldxe/swR|qog Juanball=g
se1epuei/Ae)esfyiesH “Aouadiawa=

L B0Y PERILT

densuneradn TE30)

0009y - - - J8BJBYS) YM HIPLOS IUKRIS BfeA 14
000"+ - - - BBy Ui Y04 3192813 21BA v
oorer - - - 1amowmwe] xo)du) ¥
000°6E - - - - - - - - o0'es - 063 WEuUs| "uo apu aBie Yadaamsg ]
000’58 - - - 000'68 - - - - - - YHON |d - BoB[dEH [SUUEBLY ¥ SoNuar) sdwing Jooalug Lamag 14
000'0% - - - - - - - - 00005 - Q5L 1PPCWISIMIRNUEK - | WNNDEA 2N0GOY b
100°358 - - - - - - 100°858 - - Juawese|dss pszieqqny Bujiooiy 2
000’00 L - 000°00T - {ubisag) sepe.Bdn woog sbisouos t
000'g1 - - - - - - - - 030’91 - 1osenxy wdieg v
000’861 - - - - - - - - G00'86T - u8d ‘sUBld $19A10] pPUBH SSRRIG-IY ¥
000" LY - - - - - - 000‘TE - - - aaerday 4 woog 0¥ 4
000'sE - - - - - - - 000'SE - - 19BIRLZ UM YIPHO 2MID3T BRA €
052°95 - - - 05495 - - - - - - anuenug Jeeq dn-floy ye0q 1Sem £
00008 000'06 - aupyoew Bujues|s ue] ysesy,  2ZAd4 19)9 £
000'00E" - - - - - - 00C'00E'T - 000'S WeisAg Jasiy Bugees oldoassja] I3
000'65% - - - - - 00068 - - - - ULON 2d - eoelday (swuepy B 5|04u0g 'sdwnrd Jopalu] Jameg e
000'0F - 000°0Y - sshoyasem dinbe Bunays YIm WalsAS JNIBIS UBLFIY £
000'8g - - - - - - - - DOO0BE - swawaseda) seues Bl g2Ad 49180 £
008"+ - - - - Q00'gt - - 00531 o (alniA) 1010811 Mot 0813 €
0S#'8LL - - - 05P'91T - - - - - - sorday ;siooq dn-jloy 1IX3 ' @suRNuT 300( 1883 £
00005 - 000°05 2 AID - (adaams soejdes 01) wnnoep Jadne) g
005" 268 - - - - - - 00568 - - Bi-1 S By 5o - avuiday] 1Sa)[04L I[EA, NV £
000'S2¥ - - - - - - 000'sLY - - Jorsuedkg, # s1eNfeAsy « H-0 SIBH NGNS - Sorldey) 1SeqI0u), LB Iy [
000'0re - - - - - - 0000bE - - Juoisuedxs, m eEn[EAsH - Swy By 1583 - eoerday SaN|[04) e Iy 3
000'88 - - - - - - - 000'8€ - - acejday Y woeg 26 €
o00'eL - - - - - - - - 000'8T. - eoRUaH (SYITOSSRS Bl Z2A4 M9I8Q €
000601 - 000°00T - (esbutand/asea) Uo JOY 0P O} Peeu) SIORASP [RRW N HBM 4
000°0e - 0o0'0E - 1spueyBly 9a0e or|da) o} (AUNoag) ueaulin - BIRILBA 2
000082 - 0008t - - S0A 10} JEM - LWIOO) JAAISS Ul WISAS NoRY 10) J2[0CT UepUNPSYH 2
§9C'600"L - - - - - - BOLBFO'T - - - {S10AU0T *dY “SieYeads) - WalsAg ABJeS dand 2
00002 - 006'07T - - {wops abeiols ajeyd) abpud uFiea maN 2
000'051 - - - - - - - - 000°0ST - yinog z4 - aseqday Swiely 7 siquen ‘sdung sopaly)  ZgAd 18)eq] 2

1 884228 : ) : T | BBLTTE T : i i s - POIILIGD)! -g

b - S - - - - - B o : . 102'622% - (kg HiEg8I0gAS BunInsliod S 1 Siela 2
DO00SE - - B T E E B B : BOD0SE {{iouIaoeIda] Wajshs aIemyos SoLBLL] 7 L5 JUBAT) UGSIBAUDS dHT  AUGD [eng z
000'sL - Q0o'sL - Bupw 1| eseyd suajuasueg eafig 2
000's6 - - - - - - - - 000's6 - wauyene spunb duns Salenesxe ‘|Jaxonq ajddelE "leNong Yum 065S 1BASPRS 18008 4
000'es - 00085 - {oauqle) sicnucd sadweq owaworeg 2
0sg" g - 0sT'18 - U2YDKH 158 AA - (HOGU BlY) nsuy z
009'se - - 000'sE epepdn Lo3) ‘|nes (e - (spribicn eseq) osuco oipey  PAIIWWOD 1
600'SH - 000°st - BUIDEY YSI] SIEMSSRIY  ZZAd 19/ed 4
000"0% - 000°0E - wewdnba usysily - 191049 22Ad R 1

_ OEAS-TZA DEOZ Ad _ 620Z Ad _ 80T Ad _ £T0T M _ 920Z Ad _ STOT Ad _ YZ0T AL ﬂ €Z0Z Ad _ TIOT AJ _ W0z Ad _ NOLLdiI53a BNBE_ _ AL

Aoy

0207226 paroaddy pieog - pasmay (uawdinb3 enden Buneizdg) “IA-01



Agenaa nem o.pn1

To the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the
San Diego Convention Center Corporation
San Diego, California

We have audited the financial statements of San Diego Convention Center Corporation (the
Corporation), a component unit of the City of San Diego, California {the City) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2020.
Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Qur Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our auditor and management responsibility letter dated July 30, 2020, our
responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about
whether the financial statements that have been prepared by management withgyur oversight are
presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accountirg%}%w ciples generally
accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial sta Sdefits does not relieve
you or management of your respective responsibilities. Q/

Qur responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, isgt g;l and perform our audit to
obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whet gﬁvf e financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit of financial statemgnts Includes consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing atdit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expr %’féan opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control over financial reporting, %p dingly, as part of our audit, we considered
the internal comtrol of the Corporation solely fo purpose of determining our audit procedures
and not to provide any assurance concernin%e internal control.

We are also responsible for communlﬁ»@%ifﬁ’g significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant te{your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting
process. However, we are not 1 cfkﬁd to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other
matters to communicate to youd

Planned Scope and Tin‘{i&g of the Audit

We conducted Q\b dit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously
communicated % U in our auditor and management responsibility letter dated July 30, 2020 and
our planning cominunication letter dated September 4, 2020,

Compliance with All Ethics Requiremenis Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and our network firms have
complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.



Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Corporation is included in Note 2 to the
financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in
significant accounting policies or their application during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. No
matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform
you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2} the effect
of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepare(- % management and
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments ormally based on
knowledge and experience about past and current events and assu \iidhs about future events,
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive becausel@fvtheir significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future@en s affecting them may differ
markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the f@al statements are:

¢ Management’s estimate of the depreciatj n\j ense for capital assets is computed using
the straight-line method based on th imated useful-life, which is determined by
management. We evaluated the key, fﬁéﬁrs and assumptions used to develop depreciation
expense in determining that it is reasbnable in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. ’

* Management’s estimat s?g the fair value of investments, cxcept the repurchase
agreement and gove ntal money market mutual funds, are based on quoted prices, bid
evaluation, or malixjy pricing techniques. The repurchase agreement is valued at
amortized cos@ the government money market mutuat funds are measured at the net

asset value per share (or its equivalent). We evaluated the key factors assumptions
used to fair value of investments and determined that they are reasonable in
relation‘@:a he financial statements taken as a whole.
Financial Statement Disclosures
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting
the Corporation’s financial statements relate to: fair value measurement (Note 3), long-term
liabilities {(Note 6), economic dependency (Note 7), and going concern (Note 11},
Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the
audit.



Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known
and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial,
and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards
require us to alse communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on
the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements
as a whole and each applicable opinion unit. There were no uncorrected misstatements noted as a
result of the audit procedures.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resoclved to our satisfaction, conceming a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, which could be significant to the Corporation’s financial x";a‘t‘_atf:rnents or the
auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit?,

\g\

Representations Requested from Management Q/

We have requested certain written representations from mana@e%t, which are included in the
attached letter dated October 27, 2020 (Attachment A). /&,

A

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountar@i,

In some cases, management may decide to cop u‘@ ith other accounttants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed D%&at, and to our knowledge, there were no
consultations with other accountants regard@ﬂ- diting and accounting matiers.

Other Significant Matters, Findin s&r‘issues

In the normal course of our prg .e§§1“o al association with the Corporation, we generally discuss a
variety of matters, includin, %&‘application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
operating and regulatory coﬁions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that
may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a
condition to our re‘@ s the Corporation’s auditors.

Substantial Do@}\on the Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

We believe that the effects of the COVIDR-19 pandemic and resulting government actions
including State of California mandated shelter in place executive orders limiting social gatherings
as fully described in Note 11 to the basic financial statements raise substantial doubt about the
Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. Our opinion
on the Corporation’s basic financial statements is not modified with respect to this matter.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, the Audit
Committee and management of the Corporation and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

San Diego, California
Qciober 27, 2020



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER
CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego,
California)

2020 Annual Financial Report

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2020



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
2020 Annual Financial Report
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Table of Contents

Page

Independent AUAItOr’S REPOT ...t essns s s sssba st sesssssssssssss |
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information - Unaudited) ........cvovvevve 3
Basic Financial Statements
Statement 0f Net POSIHION ...ocuvvuivcrmeeicreceieresicerens et sttt abasn s ssssesens s O
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net POSIHON ... s 10
Statement 0f Cash FIOWS ....cciiiiiiiiianicmcimissss s sasmis s ssssssssssssens L1
Notes to the Basic FINANCIAl SEAEIMEIS ...v.voe.vervreceerreesssssressecseresssseosessseoessssesesssssssssssesissssesssssessns 13
Other Report
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards ..., 27



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
San Diego Convention Center Corporation
City of San Diego, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation
(SDCCC), a component unit of the City of San Diego, California (the City), as of and for the year ended
Tune 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the SDCC’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. :

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also. includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation as of June 30, 2020, and the changes
in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 11 to the financial statements, SDCCC has suffered operating losses due to the
COVID-19 pandemic and resulting government actions including State of California mandated shelter in
place exccutive orders limiting social gatherings. Management's evaluation of the events and conditions
and management’s plans to mitigate these matters are also described in Note 11. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and cemparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not exptress an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27,
2020 on our consideration of SDCCC’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other maiters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering SDCCC’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

San Diego, California
October 27, 2020



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(Unaudited)

As management of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation (“SDCCC”), we offer readers of
SDCCC’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of SDCCC
for the year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those statements appearing
in this report.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is to serve as the introduction to SDCCC’s basic financial statements. We
report our financial information using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector
companies. These statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about its activities.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all SDCCC’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2020. The difference between (&) assets and
deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of tesources is reported as net
position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of SDCCC is improving or deteriorating. SDCCC did not have any deferred outflows or
deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2020.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position presents information showing changes
in SDCCC’s net position during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are repotted in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows
in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused paid time off).

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information showing cash receipts and cash payments during the
fiscal year, a reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities, investing
activities, and financing activities.

Highlights to Financial Resulis

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus COVID-19 {COVID-19) a global
pandemic. The outbreak of COVID-19 resulted in government actions including the State of California
issuing mandated shelter in place executive orders limiting social gatherings have had an unprecedented
and significantly negative impact on SDCCC’s financial position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020
and into fiscal year 2020-2021 in¢cluding a decrease of operating revenue of $13.4 million for the year ended
Tune 30, 2020 as compared to the year ended June 30, 2019. On April 1, 2020, the City of San Diego (the
City) exetcised its authority to use SDCCC as a temporary homeless shelter as a collective effort to alleviate
the threat of illness caused by the outbreak. In addition to revenue generation being negatively impacted,
certain expenses were reduced during closure, including payroll reductions through furloughs, layoffs and
salary reductions and draw down of paid time off balances. However, where feasible, agreements were
made with vendors to suspend contracts and services during the period of closure. In addition, to preserve
cash during the closure period, SDCCC reduced capital project spending and slowed the payment of
accounis payable and accrued expenses.



San Diego Convention Center Corporation

{A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)

Management’s Discussion and Analysts
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Management Financial Statement Analysis

(Unaudited)

The following is a summary of SDCCC’s assets, liabilities and net position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Deposits with others
Inventory
Note receivable

Capital assets, net

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities and compensated absences

Accrued [-Bank interest and loan administrative fee

Loan payable: PPP

Retention payable

Unearned income o
Current portion of long-tenn debt

Long-term portion of uneamed income

Long-termdebt
Total liabilities
Net position
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities andnet position

Percentage
Increase
June 30, 2020 Junie 30, 2019 {Decrease)
$ 12,234,853 $ 13,431,435 -0%,
4,839,943 5,192,973 -7%
3,909,084 9,842,653 -61%
999,913 809,375 24%,
181,393 182,688 -1%
57,271 38416 49%,
374,556 574,556 0%
38442410 37,447,780 1%,
" $61,039423 $ 67,519,876 ~10%
§ 2110082 § 1,637,584 200,
3,154,401 3,287,468 4%,
438,600 451,563 3%
4,387,000 - -
260,777 455,549 -43%,
4,188,487 5,071,266 -17%
760,448 734,170 4%
3,094,968 3,996,719 239
24,013,621 24,774,070 3%
42 408,384 40,408,389 5%
15,166,171 13,437,410 13%
3,464,868 13,674,077 -75%
18,631,039 27,111,487 -31%
$ 61,039,423 $ 67,519,876



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
{Unaudited)

Assets

Total assets for fiscal year 2020 decreased by $6.5 million, or 10%, to $61 million as compared to $67.5
million for fiscal year 2019, The decreases were primarily due to a decrease in accounts receivable, net of
$6.1 million, or 61%, along with a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $1.2 million or 9%. The net
decrease in receivables was related to reduced billing as a result of suspension of core operations in mid-
March due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Liabilities

Total liabilities for fiscal year 2020 increased by $2 million, or 5%, to $42.4 million as compared to $40.4
million for fiscal year 2019. The primary reason for the increase in liabilities was the receipt of a $4.4
million loan as part of the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) to fund eligible expenses (see note 5). The
change was offset by decreases in unearned income (total of $1.8 million or 25%) and long term debt ($0.8
million or 3%). The decrease in unearned income relates to decreased receipts for firure dated events due
to the temporary closure of the site for hosting events. The long-term debt decrease reflects the principal
payment made in August of 2019.

Net Position

Total net position for fiscal year 2020 decreased by $8.5 million, or 31%, to $18.6 million as compared to
$27.1 million for fiscal year 2019. This decrease in total net position is primarily due to a decrease in
unrestricted net position of $10.2 million as compared to the prior year due to the impacts of COVID-19
commencing in mid March 2020 resulting in no conventions or trade shows revenues coupled expenses
responding to the pandemic. '



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(Unaudited)

The following table summarizes SDCCC’s changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019.

Percentage
Year ended Year ended Increase
6/30/2020 6/30/2019 (Decrease)
Operating revenues
Rental $ 6,816,666 $ 9,598,718 -29%
Food and beverage 9,110,975 12,582,126 -28%
Ancillary services 11,530,600 19,064,720 -40%
Contributions fromthe City of San Diego 2,641.237 2,133,023 24%
Business development and sponsorship 249,979 394,650 -37%
Other revenue 20,638 21,695 -5%
Total operating revenues 30,370,095 43,754,934 ~11%
Operating expens es
Salaries and wages 17,694,181 18,247,837 -3%
Fringe benefits 4,772,451 5,731,579 -17%
Utilities 3,808,531 4,419,035 -14%
Services and supplies 7,440,153 7,433,082 0%
Depreciation 3,020,892 2,668,843 13%
Marketing contract 2,133,025 2,081,000 3%
Total operating expenses 38,869,233 40,381,376 4%
Operating income (loss) (8,499.138) 3,213,558 -364%
Non-operating revenues {expenses)
Interest income 228,199 279,158 -18%
Interest expense (891,362} (500,623) -1%
Loan administrative fee (74,487) (70,125) 6%
Loss on sales of disposal of capital assets - (344,977} -100%
Other ncome 756,340 742,539 2%
Total non-operating revenue (expenses), net 18,650 (294,028) -106%
Income (loss) before capital contributions (8,480,448) 2,919,530 -390%
Capital contributions - 700,000 -100%
Change in net position (8,480,448) 3,619,530 -134%
Net position - beginning of year 27,111,487 23,491,957 15%
Net position - end of year $18,631,039 $27,111,487 -31%




San Diego Convention Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
{Unaudited)

Operating Revenue

Total operating revenues generated in fiscal year 2020 amounted to $30.4 million as compared to $43.8
millien for fiscal year 2019, a decrease of $13.4 million, or 31%. The change was primarily the result of
reduced event activity due to business suspension in mid-March as a result of COVID-19 precautions.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses incurred during fiscal year 2020 amounted to $38.9 million, as compared to $40.6
million for fiscal vear 2019, a decrease of $1.7 million, or 4%, The change was primarily the result of
salary and wages decreases of $0.6 million, or 3%, due to reductions in staff to mitigate losses from the
suspension of core business in mid-March. Additionally, related fringe benefits decreased by $1 million, or
17%. Depreciation expense increased by $0.4 million, or 13%, compared fo prior year - due to additional
capitalized projects placed in service in the prior year. Additionally, utility costs decreased by $0.6 million,
or 14% due to reduced usage with suspended event activity.

Non-operating Revenue and Expenses. net

Non-operating revenues, net for fiscal year 2020 were $19 thousand as compared to non-operating
expenses, net of $0.3 million for fiscal year 2019, an increase of $0.3 million. The change was due the lack
of losses incurred from disposal of assets (write-offs resulting from a policy change) as compared to the
prior year.

Capital Assets Analysis

As of June 30, 2020, SDCCC had a net capital asset book value of $38.4 million, as cormpared to $37.4
million as of June 30, 2019, an increase of $1 million, or 3%. Capital assets are spread across a broad range
of computer, office and operating equipment, telecommunications and leasehold improvements. The gross
value of capital purchases in fiscal year 2020 of approximately $4 million was similar to fiscal year 2019
additions.

Major capital asset additions during fiscal year 2020 included:

e $1.8 million for lobby and public area carpet modernization
¢ $0.5 million for rooftop air handlers

+  $0.4 million for public space painting

¢ $0.3 million for proximity lock replacement

Debt Analysis

Effective December 6, 2016, SDCCC and the City of San Diego, as co-lessees entered into a financing lease
agreement with the [-Bank to finance capital infrastructure improvement projects valued at $25.5 million
(“Facility Fund™), The agreement calls for the Facility Fund to be amortized over 25 years at a 3.59%
interest rate and 0.3% loan administrative fee of the outstanding principal balance. As of June 30, 2020,
SDCCC had outstanding balance of $24.5 million, of which a total of $1.3 million (including principal,
interest, and loan administrative fee) was repaid in July 2020.

Effective April 15, 2013, SDCCC entered into a commercial lease agreement with CG 7600, LLC to finance
a warehouse capital improvement for SDCCC valued at $21,972 with an option to extend. The agreement
calls for the loan to be amortized aver 10 years at zero percent interest. SDCCC exercised its option to



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(Unaudited)

extend for an additiona! five years effective April 1, 2018. For the year ended June 30, 2020, SDCCC paid
$2,197 in principal payments on the warehouse loan.

In April 2020, SDCCC was approved for a $4.4 million loan through the PPP to assist with expenses
resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. As long as the proceeds are used for eligible expenses including
payroll, benefits, rents and utilities, the loan principal and accrued interest may be forgiven. SDCCC has
applied for and anticipates this forgiveness to occur in fiscal year 2020-2021.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

Operational contributions from the City for fiscal year 2020 were $2.6 million as compared to $2.1 million
for fiscal year 2019, an increase of $0.5 million. As described in Note 7, contributions from the City funded
marketing and promotion projects for the convention center. The additional $0.5 million funded the portion
of the shelter operation not covered by the loan obtained from the Pacheck Protection Program.

Effective July 1, 2012, the San Diego City Council approved for the long-term sales, marketing and
promotional activities of the convention center to be transferred to a third party contractor, the San Diego
Tourist Authority (“SDTA™). Effective July 1, 2017, SDCCC entered into a marketing and sales contract
with SDTA. The marketing and sales contract was renegotiated -and approved by City Council detailing
the terms set forth by the City. For the year ended June 30, 2020, SDCCC paid $2.1 million to SDTA under
the marketing and sales contract.

Management is anticipating a sizable decrease in financial performance for fiscal year 2021 as compared
to fiscal year 2020 as a result of the government actions taken due to the COVID-19 pandemic, with the
expectation of re-opening for events not occurring until spring of 2021. Budget revisions continue to occur
as new information emerges, with the most recent budget revision scheduled for approval in October 2020.
SDCCC anticipates support from the City of approximately $2.3 million per month for as long as the shelter
operation continues (etid date is yet to be determined). See note 11 for further discussion.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of SDCCC’s finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Vice President & CFO at the San Diego Convention Center Corporation, 111 West Harbor
Drive, San Diego, CA 92101.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diege, California)
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

Assels
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,234,853
Investments 4,839,943
Accounts receivable, net 2,909,084
Prepaid expenses 999,913
Deposits with others 181,393
Inventory 57,271
Total current assets 21,222,457
Noncurrent assets:
Accounts receivable 1,000,000
Note receivable 374,556
Capital assets:
Construction in progress 149,845
Furniture, equipment and software 6,010,689
Leasehold improvements 64,751,970
Less: Accumulated depreciation {32,470,094)
Total capital assets, net 38,442,410
Total non-current assets 39,816,966
Total assets 61,039,423
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,110,082
Accrued liabilities 1,976,595
Accrued [-Bank interest and loan administrative fee 438,600
Loan payable: Paycheck protection program 4,387,000
Retention payable 260,777
Unearned income 4,188,487
Compensated employee absences 1,177,806
Current portion of long-term debt 760,448
Total current liabilities 15,298,795
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt 24,013,621
Long-term portion of unearned income 3,094,968
Total noncurrent liabilities 27,108,589
Total liabilities 42,408,384
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 15,166,171
Unrestricted 3.464.868
Total net position $ 18.631.039

See accomparnying notes to the Basic Financial Statements.



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
{A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position

For the Period Ended 06/30/2020

Operating revenues
Rental revenue:
Convention amd trade shows
Corporate/incentive events
Consumer shows
Meetings and seminars
Cancelled events
Community events
Local trade shows
Foed and beverage revenue
Ancillary service revenue:
Utilities
Telecommunications
Event and cleaning services
Audio visual
Contribuficns:
City of San Diego
Business development and sponsorship
Other revenue
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
(General expenses
Depreciation
Contractual marketing and sales
Contracted services
Supplies
Insurance
Sales and marketing
Travel and transportation
Telecommunications
Total operating expenses

Qperating loss
Non-gperating revenues {expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Loan administrative fee
Other income

Total non-operating revetiues, het

Change in net position
Net position - beginning of year
Net position - end of year

See accompanying notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

§ 4848124
433,279
641,055
237,591
374310
182,835

98,972
9,110,975

3,836,062
3,702,250
3,182,992

809,296

2,641,237
249,979
20,638

30,370,095

17,694,131
4772451
3,808,531
2,631,840
2,833,586
3,020,892
2,133,025

561,557
562,819
495616
107,359
91,180
55,696

38,869,233

(8,499,138)

228,199

(891,362)

(74,487)
756,340
18,690

(8,480,448)
27111487

$ 18,631,039



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period Ended June 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers $ 32,834,237
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (13,341,301)
Payments to employees for services (22,564,587)
Contributions received from the City of San Diego 2,641,237
Net cash used in operating activities : (430,414)

Cash flows from capital and relaied financing activities

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,034,377)
PPP Loan funds obtained 4,387,000
Repayment of long-term debt (734,171)
Interest and loan administrative fee paid on long-term debt {(965,849)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,347,397)

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment activity, net 353,030
Interest received 228,199
Net cash provided by investing activities 581,229
Change in cash and cash equivalents (1,196,582)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 13,431,435
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 12,234,853

See accompanying wnotes to the Basic Financial Statements.

11



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
{A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued}
For the Period Ended June 39, 2020

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Other income
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in deposits with others
Decrease in accounts payable
Increase in compensated employee absences
Increase in accrued liabilities
Decrease in unearned income
Changes in long-term assets and liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

Noncash capital and financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

See accompanying notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

12

$ (8,499,138)

3,020,892
756,340

6,133,569
(190,538)
1,295
472,498
(179,466)
46,399
(1,784,530)
(207,735)

§  (430414)

$ 86,253



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 1. REPORTING ENTITY

San Diego Convention Center Corporation (SDCCC) is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation originally
organized to market, operate and maintain the San Diego Convention Center (Convention Center).

SDCCC acts in accordance with its By-Laws, the City of San Diego’s {City) Charter, and the City’s
Municipal Code, The City is the sole member of SDCCC and appoints seven voting members to the Board
of Directors of SDCCC. Since the City appoints the voting members of the Board of Directors of SDCCC
and is able to impose its will on the SDCCC, the City, as the primary government, is financially accountable
for SDCCC. In accordance with in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, SDCCC
is a blended component unit of the City.

The Convention Center was constructed by the San Diego Unified Port District (District) on land owned
by the District. Construction was completed in the fall of 1989 and the Convention Center opened in
November 1989. An expansion of the Convention Center that roughly doubled the size of the facility was
constructed by the City and completed in Septernber 2001. The City has an agreement with the District to
manage the Convention Center.

SDCCC has a management agreement with the City to provide sales and marketing, operating and
maintenance services for the Convention Center.- The agreement provides that the City will allocate to
SDCCC approved budgetary amounts for marketing, promotion and capital projects for the Convention
Center (refer to Note 7).

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A.  Basis of Accounting and Méasurement Focus

The financial transactions of SDCCC are reported using the econemic resources measurement focus and
the full accrual basis accounting under which revenues are recoghized as earned and expenses are
recognized as incurred. SDCCC distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing event meeting space, goods and services
in connection with SDCCC’s principal ongoing operations. SDCCC’s principal operating revenues include
event meeting space rental revenues, food and beverage commissions, event and cleaning service revenues,
other ancillary service revenues and contributions from the City that are used to fund marketing, promotion
and capital projects. SDCCC’s principal operating expenses includes salaries and wages, fringe benefits,
utilities, repairs & maintenance, contractual marketing & sales, and depreciation. All revenues and
expenses nolt meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. When both
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is SDCCC'’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents
SDCCC’s cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows are considered to be cash

on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with eriginal maturities of three months or less from
the date of acquisition.

13



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
{A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continned})
C. Accounts Receivable and Subsequent Event

Accounts receivable is reported net of an allowance for estimated uncollectivle amounts. Management
estimates the uncollectivile amounts to be approximately $5,000 at June 30, 2020, using its allowance
calculation methodology based on historical write-off rates and comparatble industry standards.

Long-term receivables in the amount of $1,000,000 represent incentive payments to be received by SDCCC
in equal installments of $500,000 on July 1, 2022 and July 1, 2024 from Centerplate in consideration of the
SDCCC’s extension of Centerplate’s exclusive food and beverage contract through June 30, 2026. This
agreement was amended on October 2, 2020 to further extend the remaining incentive payment amortization
period to June 30, 2028,

D. Note Receivable

In January 2018, SDCCC entered into a non-interest bearing agreement with Centerplate for SDCCC to
fund the purchase of food service equipment in the principal amount of $574,556. The remaining principal
batance of $374,556 as of June 30, 2020 is due and payable in full by Centerplate no later than June 30,
2023, unless the contract is terminated prior to the due date. Centerplate has the right to fully pay the
principal amount owed to SDCCC prior to the due date with no prepayment penalty. If the contract is
terminated prior to the due date, the remaining principal amount owed to SDCCC becomes due and payable
within 30 days from the date of termination. '

E. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid expenses.

F. Inventory

Inventory consists of spare parts that will be used and capitalized or expensed (according to capitalization
policy thresholds) when the assets are placed into service.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported at cost. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial cost of more than
$15,000 per item and a useful life of greater than one year. Recurring normal maintenance and repair costs
are charged to operation, whereas major repairs, improvements and replacements that extend the asset’s
useful life or service utility are capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the following estimated vseful lives:

Years
Data processing equipment and software 3
Telecommunication equipment 5
Office furniture and operating equipment 7-15
Leasehold improvements 10- 30

14



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
H. Unearned Income

Unearned income represents funds received from customers that pertain to enforceable future contractual
obligations. Building rent deposits, revenue contract incentive payments and advertising payments are
recognized once the event has occurred or the contractual obligation has been fulfilled.

I. Compensated Employee Absences

Accumulated annual leave (PTOY} is compensated time off for eligible employees who are absent from work
and is recorded in the Statement of Net Position. The amount recorded is expected to be used in accordance
with SDCCC’s personnel guidelines for vacation, illness, and personal business, with a maximum
accumulation of 480 hours per employee. Until March 31, 2020, full-time employees were allowed up to
120 hours paid compensation in lieu of annual leave provided they maintained a minimum balance of 40
hours and had taken a minimum of 80 hours of paid leave ‘during the prior twelve month period. This
program was subsequently suspended for expense reduction purposes (due to significant event cancellations
as a result of COVID-19 (See Note 11)), with a window for unrestricted payouts for balances in excess of
40 hours during the month of June. Represented part-time employees are paid their annual leave balance
within 30 days of fiscal year-end. '

J. Components of Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets — This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation

and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction or improvement of the
assets, net of any unspent loan proceeds, which as of June 30, 2020 was $15,166,171.

Restricted — This amount consists of restricted assets which are reduced by liabilities related to those assets.
As of June 30, 2020, there were no restricted amounts.

Unrestricted — This amount is the portion of net position that does not meet the definition of “net investment
in capital assets™ or “restricted net position”.

K. Income Taxes

SDCCC has received notice from the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income taxes
pursuant to Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. SDCCC is also exempt from state franchise
taxes on related income pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701(d). However,
the Corporation is subject to income taxes on any net income that is derived from a trade or business carried
on, and not in furtherance of the purposes for which it was granted exemption. No income tax provision
has been recorded as the net income, if any, from any unrelated trade or business, in the opinion of
management, is not material to the accompanying financial statements.



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
Unites States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. Management believes that
the estimates made are reasonable.

M. New accounting pronouncements

The following pronouncements were issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
but were early implemented through the adoption of GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which postponed various GASB pronouncements by at
least one year, and determined to not have an impact on SDCCC’s financial statements:

¢ (GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities.

+ GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interesis- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
No. 61.

The foliowing GASB Statements have been issued but are not yet effective for the year ended June 30,
2020. The SDCCC is assessing what financial statement impact, if any, these Statements will have:

e GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, effe'(::tive for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

¢ GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, effective upon issuance for the requirements related to
the effective date of GASB Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reinsurance
recoveries, and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments. The requirements will be
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022,

» GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements, effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

¢ GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, effective for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

e GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment
of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, effective
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as reported in the statement of net position are categorized as follows at June 30,
2020:

Cash and Cash Equivalents Investments
Cash on hand b 5,937 $ -
Bank checking and savings deposits 4,608,605 -
Bank money market account deposits - 20,291
Fixed income investments 7,620,311 4,819,652
Total $ 12,234,853 $ 4,839,943

At June 30, 2020, the book balance of SDCCC's cash on hand and deposits was $4,614,542 and the bank
balance was $4,455,350, Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by Federal depository insurance. The
remaining uninsured balance is collateralized, with the collateral held by an affiliate of the counterparty’s
financial institution.

A formal deposit and investment policy was approved in August 2010 and amended in December 2017 by
SDCCC’s Board of Directors, which addresses custodial credit risk, interest rate risk, credit quality risk and
allowable investments. SDCCC is provided a broad spectrum of eligible investments under California
Government Code (CGC) 53600 which includes: obligations of the U.S. government, its agencies and
instrumentalities; investment grade state and local government securities; certificates of deposit; bankers’
acceptances; commercial paper: repurchase agreements; and money market mutual funds whose portfolios
consist only of domestic securities.

The SDCCC’s Investrnént Policy is governed by the California Government Code (CGC), 56000 et seq.
The following table represents the authorized investments, requirements and restrictions per the CGC and
the SDCCC investment policy:

Maxinum %

Maximum Maturity of Portfolio Minimum Rating
SDCCC SDCCC sDCCC
Investment Tvpe CGC Policy CGC Poliey CGC Palicy
Local Agency Bonds 5 years 5 years None Nene None None
zi;ﬁ;’m Cbligatians (bills, notes. Syears 5 yeurs MNone one Mone Mane
State Obligations — CA and Others 5 years 5years MNone Nene None None
CA Local Agency Obligations 5 years 3 years Mone None None None
U.5. Agency Obligations 5 years 3 years None Nene None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180days 180 days A% 0% None Nons
Comnmercizl Paper — Non-Pooled 270 days 270 days 25% 25% Highest Highest
Funds letter andd letter and
number number
rating rating
Negotiable Certificates of Deposil 3 years 5 years 30% 30% Wone None
Non-Negotioble Certificates of Deposit 3 years 5 years Nene None None None
€D Placement Servies 5 years 5 years 30% 3% Nane Nene
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 1 vaar None None Nane Nane
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 92 days 20% 20% None Nane
Medium-Term MNotes 5 years 5 years 30% 30% A A
Money Muket Mutual Funds None Nane 2% 20% AAA AAM
Collateralized Bauk Deposils 3 years 5 years Nane None Nene None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 5 years 20%% 20% AA AA
Laocal Agency Investment Fund None None Nene None None None
Supranational Obligations 3 years 5 years 30% 3% AA AA
Insnred Savings & Bank Money Market NIA N/A N/A N/A WA WA

Accounts

! In the absence of a specificd maxinum, he maximum is 5 years

17



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Compenent Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
I[nvestments as reported in the statement of net position are categorized as follows at June 30, 2020:
Fair Value Measurements

GASB Statement No. 72 requires that investments be categorized within a fair value hierarchy based upon
fair value measurements. Fair value measurements are classified and disclosed in one of the following three
categories:

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices in an active market that are accessible at the measurement date
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are either directly or indirectly observable;

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs are used when little or not market activity is available.

Fair value is defined as the quoted market value on the last trading day of the period, obtained from various
pricing sources by our custodian bank. SDCCC does not value any of its investments using Level 1 and
Level 3 inputs. Investment in repurchase agreements are valued at amortized cost and is exempt from the
fair value hierarchy. Investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its
equivalent) are not classified in the fair value hierarchy. SDCCC values investments in government money
market mutual funds at NAV, and therefore are not subject to the fair value hierarchy.

The table below represents SDXCCC’s fair value hierarchy for reporting its investments as of June 30, 2020:

Fair Value Level 2

Investments at fair value level

Corporate Bonds $ 606,792 $ 606,792

Comumercial Paper : 1,099,555 1,099,555

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 3,633,616 3,633,616
Total investments at fair value 5,339,963 5,339,963
Investments measuared at amortized cost

Repurchase Agreements 7,100,000
Investments measured at the net asset value (NAV)

Bank money market funds 20291

Total investments $12,460,254 $5,339.963



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 40 requires that risks for deposits and investments with fair values as it relates to
credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and interest rate risk be disclosed. SDCCC minimizes exposure by
limiting investments to short-term, safe securities such as mutual funds or similar investment pools to
ensure preservation of capital as well as pre-qualifying brokers and diversification of the investment
pertfolio. In order to maintain proper cash flow requirements, funds are continuously invested in readily
available securities to ensure appropriate liquidity is maintained.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
SDCCC mitigates this risk by investing in short-term securities of less than a year in order to meet
operational cash requirements, and structuring the investment portfolio to allow securities to mature to
avoid selling on the open market. As of June 30, 2020, SDCCC’s investment interest rate risk by maturity
is as follows:

Investment Maturity in Months

Under 1 _ i-6 6-12 Fair Vahe

Commercial Paper 3 599,970 $ 499,585 h) - $ 1,099,555
Corporate Bonds - 606,792 - 606,792
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 600,576 2,532,985 500,055 3,633,616
Bank Money Market Funds 20,291 - - 20,291
Repurchase Agreements 7,100,000 - - 7,100,000
$ 8,320,837 $3,639,362 $ 500,055 $12,460,254

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill their obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization (NRSRO}. The SDCCC mitigates credit risk through its Investment Policy. Section I of the
Investment Policy outlines the authorized investments, requirements, and investment restrictions. As of
June 30, 2020, SDCCC’s investment and correspondieng credit ratinges are follows:

Fair Value Credit Rating
Commercial Paper $ 599,970 A-1
Commercial Paper 499,585 A-2
Corporate Bonds 606,792 A-
Bank Money Market Funds 20,290 N/A
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 499,900 A-1+
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 2,105,118 A-1
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 428,022 AA-
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 600,576 N/A

Repurchase Agreements 7,100,000 N/A



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Compenent Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Concentration of Credit Risk
GASB Statement No. 40 also requires disclosure of investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury

securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total investments. A
summary of disclosures related to concentration of credit risk as of June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Issuer Investment Type Fair Value
Daiwa Bank U.S. Treasury Tri-party Repurchase Agreement $ 4,500,000
INTL FCStone Government Sponsored Enterprise Repurchase Agreement 2,600,000

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for fnvestments is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another
party. The California Government Code and SDCCC’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited
by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure SDCCC deposits by
pledging first trust deed mortgage niotes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows:

Begioning Balance Transfers Ending Balance
June 30,2019 Additions Deletions I/{Out) June 30,2020
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Construction in progress 1,466,467 1,221,261 - (2,537,883) 149,845
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Fumiture, equipment and software 4,012,253 415,356 - 1,583,080 6,010,689
Leasehold Improvements 61,418,262 2,378,905 - 954,803 64,751,970
Total Depreciable Capital Assets: 65,430,515 2,794,261 - 2,537,883 70,762,659
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Fumiture, equipment and software (2,859,424 (374,289) - - (3,233,713)
Leasehold Improvements (26,589,778) (2,646,603} - - (29,236,381}
Total Accumulated Depreciation (29,449,202) (3,020,892) - . - (32,470,094)
Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 35,981,313 (226,631) - 2,537,883 38,292,565
Capital Assets, Net 37,447,780 994,630 - - 38,442,410

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $3,020,892. No interest incurred during the
year ended June 30, 2020 was capitalized.

NOTE 5. LOAN PAYABLE

SDCCC applied for a United States Small Business Administration Loan and was approved for the
Paycheck Protection program (PPP) in April 2020 to pursue funding for paytoll costs. SDCCC received
loan proceeds in the amount of $4,387,000 in May 2020. The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus
Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), provides for loans to qualifying businesses for
amounts up to 2.5 times of the average monthly payroll expenses of qualifying business. The loans and
accrued interest are forgivable after eight weeks as long as the borrower uses the loan proceeds for eligible
purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, an maintains its payroll fevels. The amount of loan
forgivenss will be reduced if the borrower terminates employees or reduces salaries during the eight-week
period.

The unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is payable over two years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral
of payments for the first six months. SDCCC uvsed the proceeds for purposes consistetnt with the PPP and
expects the loan to be forgiven in full as the PPP criteria have been met. Loan forgiveness is anticipated to
be confirmed in fiscal 2021, before the end of calendar 2020.



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements {Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
A. Compensated Employee Absences

A summary of changes in accrued compensated employee absences for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as
follows:

Balance Balance Current
June 30,2019 Additions Retirements  June 30,202{ Portion

Compensated Employee Absences § 1,357,272 § 1514161 § (1,698284) § 1,177,806 § 1,177,806

B. Notes Payable and Financing Lease
Notes Payable

On April 15, 2013, SDCCC entered into a commercial lease agreement with CG 7600, LP (lessor) in which
the lessor financed a warehouse capital improvement for SDCCC valued at $21,972. The agreement calls
for the loan to be amortized as part of SDCCC’s monthly rent over 10 years at a zeto percent per annum
rate.

Financing Lease

On December 6, 2016, SDCCC (lessee) and the City, as co-lessees entered into a Financing Lease
agreement with the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (I-Bank), as the lessor for
a loan amount of $25,500,000 (the “Facility Funds™). Under the Financing Lease agreement, the Facility
Funds were used to pay the convention center building (the “Leased Asset”) improvement costs. The City
and SDCCC are jointly and severaliy liable for all rental payment obligations under the Financing Lease
agreement. The Facility Funds are secured by the Leased Asset. In addition, the Financing Lease agreement
contains certain customary representations and warranties, affirmative covenants, and events of default. If
such an event of default were to occur, the lessor under the Financing Lease agreement would be entitled
to take various actions, including without termination of the Financing Lease, collect all amounts owing
under the Financing Lease until maturity.

The Facility Funds bear a 3.59% annual interest rate and a .3% loan administrative fee based upon the
outstanding principal balance. The Financing Lease requires annual principal repayment commencing on
August 1, 2019 and ending on August 1, 2041. Per agreement with the City, SDCCC has budgeted for and
made payments on the full amount due under the Financing Lease beginning on August 1, 2019. In any
given year, to the extent that rental payment obligations, infrastructure capital, and operations and
maintenance expenditures exceed SDCCC’s available funding, SDCCC will seek further budgetary
allocation from the City.

A summary of changes in notes payable and the financing lease for the year ended June 30, 2020, is as
follows:

Balance Balance Current Long-term
June 30,2019 Additions Retirements June 30,2020 Portion Portion
CG7600LP % 8240 % - $ 2,197 § 6,043 b 2,197 3 3,846
iBank Financing Lease 25,500,000 - (731,973) 24,768,027 758,251 24,009,776

3 25,508,240 % - $ (734170) $ 24,774,070 $ 760,448 $24,013,622




SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Annual requirements to amortize the notes payable as of June 30, 2020, including interest payments to
maturity, are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Annual Fee Total
2021 $ 760448 $ 875,562 g 74,304 $ 1,710,314
2022 787,669 847,852 72,029 1,707,550
2023 815,319 819,147 69,673 1,704,139
2024 842,881 789412 67,232 1,699,525
2025 873,140 758,610 64,703 1,696,453
2026 - 2030 4,859,009 3,290,886 282,293 8.432,188
2031 - 2035 5,796,113 2,336,960 203,983 8,337,056
2036 - 2040 6,913,946 1,199,062 - 116,571 8,223,579
2041 - 2042 3,125,545 113,196 14,148 3,252,889

$24,774,070 $11,030,687 $ 958,936 $36,763,693

NOTE 7. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

SDCCC receives contributions from the City as specified in a management agreement between SDCCC
and the City. The agreement provides that the City will allocate to SDCCC approved budgetary amounts
for marketing, promotion and capital projects for the Convention Center. During the year ended June 30,
2020, SDCCC received $2,641,237 from the City, of which $2,133,025 was used to fund marketing contract
expenses paid to the San Diego Tourism Authority related to certain sales, marketing and promotional
aspects of long-term events at the Convention Center.

The remaining $508,212 was used to fund the shelter operation. Subsequent to events being suspended in
March, SDCCC has been hosting the City’s “Operation Shelter to Home” at a monthly cost of
approximately $2.3M. The majority of the costs to run the shelter program (for April to June) were staff
related and covered by the PPP loan for April to June, 2020,

NOTE 8. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The San Diego Convention Center Corporation’s Money Purchase Pension Plan (Plan) is a governmental
plan under section 414{d) of the Internal Revenue Code, which was established effective January 1, 1986,
by SDCCC’s Board of Directors. The Plan is administered by SDCCC through a Defined Contribution
Committee, represented by the SDCCC Board and staff, who act by a majority of its members in office to
carry out the general administration of the Plan. Any recommended Plan amendments are subject to the
approval and adoption by SDCCC’s Board of Directors. As part of the Pian, SDCCC through Board action
selected Wells Farge & Company as Trustee, to hold and administer Plan assets subject to the terms of the
Plan. The Plan is a qualified defined contribution plan and, as such, benefits depend on amounts contributed



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 8. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN (Continued)

to the Plan plus investment earnings less allowable plan expenses. The Plan covers all employees who have
completed at least 1,000 hours of service in one year and are not covered through a union retirement plan.
Full time employees are eligible to participate in the plan on the first day of the month after completing
1,000 hours of service and receive contributions on a bi-weekly basis thereafter. Part-time employees are
eligible to participate in the plan after completion of 1,000 hours and receive contributions annually once
they meet the 1,000 hours threshold requirement each year. For each Plan year, SDCCC contributes 10%
of compensation paid after the employee becomes an eligible participant, which is transferred to the trustee
on behalf of each qualifying individual.

A Plan year is defined as a calendar year. The balance in the Plan for each eligible employee is vested
gradually over five years of continuing service, with an eligible employee becoming fully vested after five
years. Forfeitures and Plan expenses are allocated in accordance with Plan provisions.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, pension expense amounted to $1,371,480 with no employee contributions
made to the Plan, Included in pension expense were forfeitures in the amount of $56,320. SDCCC records

pension expense during the fiscal year based upon employee compensation that is included in qualified
gross compensation.

NOTE . COMMITMENTS

SDCCC as Lessor

Effective March 22, 2013, SDCCC entered into a sublease agreement for truck marshal yard space for an
initial term of 60 months, from April 1, 2013 through March 31, 2018 and exercised its option to extend
for an additional five years effective April 1, 2018 —March 31, 2023. Future minimum annual rental lease
revenues are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Amount
2021 S 150,043
2022 153,994
2023 118,423
Total 8 422,480

Rental income related to the sublease was $153,047 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

SDCCC as Lessee

SDCCC has noncancelable operating leases with terms greater than one year for photocopiers as well as
iruck marshal yard and warehouse space. The lease commitments are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Anrount
2621 5 231,183
2022 228,8%0
2023 173,374
Total 8 655,447

Lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $255,962.



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
{A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Construction Commitments

SDCCC has a material commitment under construction contracts as of June 30, 2020 as follows:

Remaining Expected
Construction Projects Construction Value  Completion Year
Fire Pump Replacement $ 322,388 FY 2021

NOTE 10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

SDCCC is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;

errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disaster.

SDCCC is subject to various lawsuits as well as grievances by labor unions. SDCCC’s management
believes, based upon consultation with SDCCC attorneys, that aiiy unasserted claims, in the aggregate, will
not result in a material adverse financial impact on SDCCC beyond the funds held in retention for

anticipated amounts due as a result of pending legdl decisions.

SDCCC is covered by various insurance policies, the largest of which include property, liability and
workers’ compensation, with deductibles that vary from $5,000 to $250,000. SDCCC management believes
that SDCCC’s insurance programs are sufficient to cover any potential losses should an unfavorable
outcome materialize. There have been no insurance claim settlements that exceeded insurance coverage

during the past three fiscal years.



SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 11. GOING CONCERN

The financial statements of SDCCC are prepared on a going concern basis of accounting which
contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities and obligations in the normal course
of business.

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus COVID-19 (COVID-19) a global
pandemic. The outbreak of COVID-19 continues to grow both in the U.S. and globally and resulting
government actions including State of California mandated shelter in place executive orders limiting social
gatherings have had an unprecedented and significantly negative impact on SDCCC’s financial position for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and into fiscal year 2020-2021. Due to suspension of business from
mid-March 2020 forward, total operating revenues for the year ended June 30, 2020 experienced a decline
of approximately $13.4 million (31%) as compared to the year ended June 30, 2019. It is uncertain at this
time when SDCCC will be able to resume hosting events. SDCCC is working closely with state and local
governments to establish approved guidelines for a safe re-opening anticipated in the summer of 2021. The
majority of event business come from out of town guests and exhibitors that takes years to coordinate
towards building a successful event. An Event organizer typically needs 4-6 months lead time to ensure
attendees can register and book travel plans, ship exhibitor booth materials and confirm registration
requirements. SDCCC risks losing more events into the second quarter of 2021 if State approved reopening
guidelines are delayed beyond November 2020.

SDCCC’s unrestricted net position is approximately $3.46 million as of June 30, 2020. SDCCC’s Board of
Directors approved a 4th revision to the fiscal year 2020-2021 operating budget on October 27, 2020. This
revised budget assumes a net operating loss of approximately $9.2 million if events commence in June 2021
and a negative reserve balance of approximately $4.2 million. Management has taken the following actions
in order to mitigate the resulting expected decreases in reserves:

e Obtained funding of $4.4 million from the Paycheck Protection Program in May 2020. It is
expected that this loan will be entirely forgiven in FY 2020-2021 and be recognized as an inflow
of resources.

o Partnered with the City of San Diego for Operation Shelter tc Home — providing temporary safe
housing for local unsheltered residents. The City is reimbursing related costs of approximately $2.3
million per month (beginning in July 2020) while the temporarily shelter continues. This is
expected to continue through December 2020,

¢ Implemented significant reductions in employee headcount of nearly 50% of full time staff and a
significant portion of part time staff (with reduced hours for remaining staff). Additional cost
saving measures are being explored to include reduced retirement contribution benefits, employer
subsidized healthcare for dependent coverage, as well as other benefit reductions.

e Reduced Capital improvement projects and non-critical maintenance projects (these were deferred
to future years).

¢ Pursued additional support from the City to cover necessary ongeing costs.

SDCCC has not missed any payment obligations to date and will continue to prioritize debt payment
obligations as part of the budget process. SDCCC is working with the City finance and debt management
departments to coordinate efforts to ensure payments will be paid timely despite the ongoing pandemic.

26



This page left blank intentionally.



OTHER REPORT



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
San Diego Convention Center Corporation
City of San Diego, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standords
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the San Diego
Convention Center Corporation (SDCCC), a component unit of the City of San Diego, California (the
City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise SDCCC’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 27, 2020, '

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered SDCCC’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SDCCC’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of SDCCC’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal comtrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Out consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether SDCCC’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Audifing Standards.

27



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

San Diego, California
October 27, 2020

28



Agenda Item 3.F

CONTACT: Andy Mikschl, Chief Sales & Revenue Officer, San Diego Convention Center
Andy.mikschl@visitsandiego.com | 111 West Harbor Dr., San Diego, CA 92101
619.5625.5282

SHORT TERM BOOKING ACTIVITY

Conventions, Corporate Events, Consumer Shows, Community Events, & Local Meefings

EVENTS 3 7 5 25
ATTENDANCE 2,750 12,480 7,750 40,982
ROOM NIGHTS 509 770 509 5,330

RENTAL REVENUE $55,304 $129,725 $85,304 $486,162

FY21 PERCENT TO GOAL

Convention Center Rental Revenue

CONTRACTED RENTAL REVENUE 2,600,000

3.2%




2021

24 Seven Dance Convention/Break The Floor 03111421 850 65 169 $25,795
Shamrock Expo 2021 05/08/21 1,600 300 340 $21,800
South County Economic Development Summit 10/05/21 500 0 0 $7.700




2021

Epic Series Obstacle Challenge 1172421 1,800 0 0 $21,800
Southern CA Rental Housing Conference 04/30/21 3,500 ¢] 0 $8,200
24 Seven Dance Convention/Break The Fleor 311721 850 65 169 $25,795
Shamrock Expo 2021 05/08/21 1,600 300 340 $21,800
South County Economic Development Summit 10/05/24 500 0 0 $7.709




PRIMARY MARKET
Conventions, Trade Shows, Comporate & Incentive Events

CONVENTIONS

ATTENDANCE

ROOM NIGHTS

CONVENTIONS g 9 11
ATTENDANCE 40,300 37,400 53,000 142,250
ROOM NIGHTS 90,754 72,106 113,94 321,877

FY21 TOTAL ROOM NIGHTS FOR FUTURE BUSINESS

FY21 TOTAL ROOM NiGHTS

ROOM NIGHT SUMMARY
Figures based on calendar year.

BOOK

BOOK

400K

200K

oK L] |
2017 201 2me 2020 2022 202z 2024 2026

Tentative Room Nights 24K BTK 27K 75H: EOK 99K 165K
Definite Room Nights veeki YAk 7aok|  1eeK|  eeex 723K JBAK, 72K 708K 384K|  53mK
Definite Conventions 4 23 57 15 47 51 a4 36 27 20 23




BREAKDOWN OF LOST BUSINESS

Conventions, Trade Shows, Corporate & Incentive Events, SEPTEMBER 2020

Lost Roor? Nights 106k

COVID-18 &

PREFERRED DATES NOT AVAILABLE
INSUFFICEINT SPACE

COST | 0%

CHANGES IN ORGAMIZATION 0%

LOST TO ANOTHER DESTINATION 0%

SITE INSPECTIONS—VIRTUAL

®  SERVPRO INDUSTRIES INC.

CLIENT APPOINTMENTS

&  AFCEA INTERNATIONAL

*  AMERICAN ACADEMY OF DERMATOLOGY

®  AMERICAN ACADEMY OF ORTHOPAEDIC SURGEONS

*  AMERICAN ASSOCIATION CANCER RESEARCH

*  AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF CRITICAL-CARE NURSES

®  AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF MEDICAL COLLEGES

&  AMERICAN COUNCIL ON THE TEACHING OF FOREIGN
LANGUAGES

®  AMERICAN DIABETES ASSOCIATICN

*  AMERICAN FARM BUREAU FEDERATION

*  AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

*  AMERICAN OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY ASSOCIATION, INC.

&  AMERICAN PSYCHGLOGICAL ASSOCIATION

*  AMERICAN SQOCIETY FOR CELL BIOLOGY

¢ AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR METABOLIC AND BARIATRIC SURGERY

¢  AMERICAN SOCIETY OF ANESTHESIOLOGISTS

*  AMERICAN SOCIETY OF COLON & RECTAL SURGEQNS

CLIENT APPOINTMENTS

*  AMERICAN THORACIC SOCIETY

*  AMERICAN TRAFFIC SAFETY SERVICES ASSOCIATION

*  AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION

*  ASSOCIATION FOR SCHOOL SUPERINTENDENTS

& ASSOCIATION FORUM

*  AVID LEARNING INSTITUTE

®  BREWERS ASSOCIATION

e  CABI

¢  CONSORTIUM OF MULTIPLE SCLERQSIS CENTERS

®  ENDOCRINE SOCIETY

®  ENTERPRISE EVENTS GROUP

¢ ENVIRONMENTAL RESEARCH SYSTEMS INSTITUTE

®*  GECRGE P. JOHNSON

®  HEART RHYTHM SOCIETY

®  INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE ASSOCIATION

& INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE QF AMMONIA REFRIGERATION/
SMITHBUCKEIN

¢ |[PC-ASSOCIATION CONNECTING ELECTRONICS INDUSTRIES

*  [RRIGATICN ASS0CIATION
JACK HENRY

*  MORTGAGE BANKERS ASSOCIATION

®  NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS/
CONFERENCEDIRECT



CLIENT APPOINTMENTS

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS

NATIONAL INDIAN GAMING ASSOCIATION

NATURAL RURAL ELECTRIC CORPORATION ASSOCIATION
PCMA

SMITHBUCKLIN

SOCIETY FOR LABQRATORY AUTOMATION & SCREENING
SOCIETY FOR VASCULAR SURGERY

SOCIETY OF NEUROSCIENCE

SOCIETY OF THORACIC SURGEONS

SOCIETY OF VASCULAR SURGEONS

SPARGO, INC

THE UNITED ASSOCIATION OF JOURNEYIMEN AND APPRENTICES OF
THE PLUMBING AND PIPE FITTING INDUSTRY OF THE UNITED
STATES & CANADA/CONVENTION SERVICES UNLIMITED (UA)

INDUSTRY APPOINTMENTS

2020 VIRTUAL LUNCH & LEARN: SOCIAL SELLING TACTICS IN THE NOW

NORMAL

CALTRAVEL BOARD MEETING

CVBREPS 4TH QUARTER OFFICIAL MEETING

DESTINATION REPS CONFERENCE CALL

DESTINATION REPS MARKETING COMMITTEE

EVENT STRATEGISTS HAPPY HOUR

JAEE VIRTUAL LUNCH & LEARN

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF VENUE MANAGERS TOWN HALL
NATIONAL BLACKS IN TRAVEL AND TOURISM COLLABORATIVE
DOLLARS AND SENSE WEBINAR SERIES

NATIGNAL SPEAKERS ASSOCIATION'S WEBINAR

NATIONAL BLACKS IN TRAVEL & TOURISM WEBINAR

PCMA BLM TASK FORCE MTG

PCMA BOARD MEETING PREP

PCMA CHAIR ELECT MEETING

PCMA EXEC FINANCE COMMITTEE

PCMA FOUNDATION EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE STRATEGY MEETING
PCMA GMC WEBINAR

PCMA RECOVERY LAUNCH

PCMA WEBINAR

PCMA: COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

US TRAVEL-INDIANAPOLIS CASE STUDY



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Agenda Item 5

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors
Rip Rippetoe, President & CEO
October 27, 2020

September 2020 President & Staff Report

Core Value: Service — If we are not serving our customer, serve someone who is.

Thanks to the Executive Team, Maren Dougherty and Rita De la Fuente for helping to
construct the content of this report.

Executive:

e 100+ events cancelled from March through December 2020.

Human Resources:

The HR department team continues to stay busy. The employee hotline is no longer very active
but we do continue to check, however as before, employees are calling us directly (laid off, active
and leave of absence).

o Achievements for the past 4 weeks:

We have remained involved with the community. One of the HRBPs participated in a
SDSU student interview. These interviews generally applies to students within the
Hospitality Tourism Management Program.

H.R. produced and distributed an UltiPro Training Video and Domestic Violence
Awareness Videos ((1) supervisor (1} employee)

Updated domestic abuse handouts. These handouts are now available in both English
and Spanish.

Have signed an agreement with Zeamo to make their services available to all
employees, current and laid off. Zeamo offers employees access to free on-demand
workouts, live-stream classes, free activity tracking, fitness rewards, discounts on

fitness equipment and tech, and unlimited access to gyms and studios with the purchase

of a monthly subscription. Employees will be able to enroll using their SDCCC or
personal email address. This program is no cost to the employer. Zeamo is relaunching



Agenda Item 5

its website on November 2, 2020, and we should be able to roll out the program to
employees by November 16, 2020.

- Able to have eQuest and UKG (Ultimate Kronos Group) provide relief in agreements.
The UKG has been sent to the CFO for consideration to perhaps have the ED,
Procurement & Strategic Relations reach out to possibly negotiate a better relief
offering.

Successfully completed and submitted discovery items and review, updated and signed
interrogatories for PAGA Claim and Sexual Harassment/Medical Discrimination
claims.

HR team continues to have at least two members in the office 8am — 5pm, M-F.

o The focus for the next 4 weeks:
- Continuance of transition of separated HR staff responsibilities to the remaining HR
staff
- Training backups on HR process in order to have best coverage when responsible HR
team member is out of office or furloughed.

Finance:

e Money Purchase Pension plan is facing a partial plan termination status change for 2020
due to more than 20% reduction in participant terminations. This allows anyone who was
less than 100% vested during 2020 to become fully vested in this plan year. Anyone who
took a distribution during 2020 will be made “whole” if they were less than 100%
vested. This will have a major impact on the value of forfeitures the plan will recognize in
2021 but should not have any future financial impact to SDCCC as all funds contributed at
100% value. '

s Annual FY2020 Financial Statement audit completed with highest opinion determined.

s Accounting to begin developing new disclosure requirements for leases (all future license
agreement obligations and future building rental revenue will be required in next year’s
reporting schedule as a new note disclosure)

¢ ERP project contracted and kick off meetings are underway for early
November. Anticipated conversion timeline will begin in December and is anticipated to
take 12-18 months for full conversion/testing.

¢ Final revised budget complete and awaiting October BOD approval. A formal funding
request is being coordinated with the City to subsidize a $4.2M shortfall for FY2021.

o IT enabled enhanced security features for leadership staff and those who exchange high
volumes of sensitive data. Multi factor authentication will be enabled with new ERP
platform and all integrated devices.

o TIssued RFP for Property Condition Assessment with response deadline of November 6,
2020.

o Sales and event metrics as well as trend analysis under development for collaborative
approach with SDTA to focus on booking strategy and incentive programs to build a
stronger sales program for destination growth.

» Contract renegotiations continue related to maintenance, insurance, software and benefit
costs reductions.



Agenda Item 5

Business Development:

The following are project opportunities are currently under development:

e Lobby Advertising:
o  Planning and permitting continues for the installation of Phase 2. Electrical for
these new pieces of equipment is substantially complete.
o New Opportunities
o We continue our discussions with CLEAR, to explore partnership which would
potentially provide health screening technology services to SDCC staff and to our
clients, while creating potential new revenues source for SDCC through referral
agreement.
o  Hybrid Meetings
o We continue to explore viability and feasibility of creating broadcast studio at the
facility, to allow for more virtual/hybrid meeting options for our clients.

Sales:

Short term sales

s Event booking activity is slowly returning, as clients start to plan for future events in the
latter part of *21 and into "22. Due to reduced staffing levels of short term sales team, we
will focus primarily on those booking opportunities that provide highest ROI in terms of
generating revenue for SDCC, as well as maximizing room nights for the destination.

Citywide Sales

o Partnering with SDTA sales staff to continually engage with CY21 clients, specifically
those booked in Q1 & Q2. Presently, we have cancelied all event activity through January
of 21. Several large events are still scheduled to take place in February and March, but we
will be working with SDTA and our hotel partners in the coming weeks to determine how
best to manage those events, based on pending feedback and guidance we are awaiting
from the Governor’s Office. Whenever possible, we are looking to reschedule Q1 events
to a future year, based on the size of the event and our availability

o Working with Julie Coker to review SDTA Citywide sales parameters, strategies, and
booking guidelines to ensure we are positioned appropriately moving forward. Julie has
engaged with Ms. Christine “Shimo” Shimasaki, Managing Director with 2Synergize,
which provides sales and marketing consulting services to DMOs throughout the Country.

* Working with SDTA staff on two upcoming client outreach events, to include: 1) client

roundtable discussion on November 4, to garner feedback from a select group of clients
regarding what they are sceing with re-openings at other facilities, and 2) Town Hall
Meeting, to continue to provide update on California re-opening timelines to clients.



Agenda Item 5

Convention Services
¢  We have successfully transitioned the convention services department from SDCC to
SDTA. Presently SDTA has retained only one staff member for that department.

Venue Operations:

Re-opening efforts:

¢ Met with the County Health team who were pleased with our draft Client Re-Opening
Guide and the Staff Re-Opening Guide. They have forwarded the draft guides to the Public
Health officials at the state level.

¢ Our team has created a checks and balance sheet for clients to ensure we are meeting our
GBAC obligations. It is a check for clients to know what to look for as they walk the venue.

¢ We have just completed outlining a process with our team and the general service
contractors regarding process for checking in labor calls. We will utilize one lane of the
back of house garage exit way to line up labor and check-in with color coding sticker for
badges, wristbands and temp checks etc.

o  We will be utilized as a “Super Polling Place” 10/31 through election day 11/3.

Venue Operations:

¢ Ready for the final installation of electric for the new digital displays, waiting until the
shelter ends as we will need to shut down power to finalize.

*  We now have a tool to alert all leadership team members via an emergency alert on their
cell phones for quicker and accurate dissemination of urgent information

¢ Finalizing the permit process for the kitchens new dish machine.

» All final FF& E deliveries have been made on the remaining 5000 stackable chairs and 320
waste stream containers we had ordered. Delayed arrival due to CoVid related
transportation issues.

¢ New 4 stream containers are in the process of being placed throughout the upper level
public spaces as a first step in distribution with the rest waiting until the shelter
demobilizes.

Shelter to Home Operations:

o The “Shelter to Home” program will continue through December 2020.

» Current residents = 1034.

e We had one guest pass away in Father Joe’s. The death was not CoVid19 related, waiting
for confirmation but all indications appear to be natural causes.

o Testing for Coid19 continues on an on-going basis. As of April 2020 through today we
have only had 23 positive cases with over 8,000 tests conducted.

¢ Under Todd Temple, Director of Public Safety & Guest Services we are taking a larger
role in overseeing and directing the contracted security staff for the shelter agencies. '



Agenda Item 5

Centerplate:

» Centerplate at SDCC has received Rise SAFFE hygiene verification label for F&B services.
We demonstrated 100% compliance across 36 checkpoints within four core areas including
process, training, facilities, and hygiene/cleaning, This label furthers our goal of creating
increased consumer confidence for our clients and for the future of meeting and events
industry in San Diego.

¢ We have introduced new tools in our kitchens to combat Covid-19:

o Installed UV-C air purifiers in centralized locations in the East and West Kitchens,
These purifiers use UV-C light to actively disinfect the air in our kitchens during
business hours and provide increased safety for our staff.

o Implemented a new Food Safe chemical from Eco Lab that acts as both a
disinfectant and sanitization treatment of surfaces within our kitchen. It is designed
to be safer around food, and will reduce cost due to its multi-purpose use.

e With the news of “Operation Shelter to Home” extension through December, we
incorporated a new Flex schedule for the upcoming months. This schedule allowed us to
distribute weekend and Holidays between the multiple teams, and has been well received
by the staff.

» We have continued to strengthen our relationships with local vendors to bring in cost
efficient items they have surplus of which is a win/win for both parties.

On Site Audio Visual:

On Site has continued to support “Operation Shelter to Home.” Over the next several weeks they
are finalizing instructions for their staff so upon return procedures will be in place that meet local
and federal guidelines. In addition they have incorporated more virtual meeting technology into
their efforts to support our customer’s needs.

Smart City Technical Services:

Smart City is providing ongoing support for the “Shelter to Home” program. They have also
developed a business continuity plan that includes a reduction of operating costs. The Smart City
team have developed re-entry guidelines and trained their teams. A good deal of time is spent
brainstorming ideas to support virtual meetings with their services. The majority of time moving
forward is being spent in contact with our customers for service requirements with a focus on the
events in late fall/early winter.

Marketing & Communications

o Communicated Centerplate’s success as the first North American venue fo earn the Rise
SAFE hygiene verification label from Sodexo and Bureau Veritas; our designation as an
Exhibitor Magazine Center of Excellence; and Rip Rippetoe’s recognition in the
VenuesNow 2020 All-Star list.




Agenda Item 5

e Coordinated public relations efforts with the County for the voting center that will take
place in our exhibit hall for the 2020 election and continued collaborating with the Mayor’s
office for shelter communications.

* Promoted hybrid events through online communications, press outreach, and a front-page
article in the San Diego Business Journal.

» Lit the sails in support of World Homeless Day and various other community/nonprofit
efforts.

o Entered the final phase of development for our newly designed website.

Government Affairs and Community Qutreach:

We continue to have a presence in the community and to present to local organizations such as

« Downtown Real Estate Group Presentation 10/15/20

» Sails Pavilion has been lit for causes recently such as World Homeless Day, Alzheimer's
Awareness, Dysautonomia Awareness

»  Ongoing updates to industry partners

Awards and recognition:

¢ Venues of Excellence Top 30, Exhibitor's Magazine
* Rip Rippetoe named on 2020 All-Stars list, VenuesNow Magazine



